
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Property Investment Board 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 10 FEBRUARY 2016 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

  

Members: Deputy Alastair Moss (Chairman) 
Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chairman) 
Chris Boden 
Mark Boleat 
Keith Bottomley (Co-Opted 
Member) 
David Brooks Wilson (Co-Opted 
Member) 
Deputy Michael Cassidy 
 
 
 

Deputy Roger Chadwick 
Deputy John Chapman 
George Gillon 
Deputy Brian Harris 
Ann Holmes 
Michael Hudson 
Tony Joyce (Co-Opted Member) 
Dhruv Patel 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: David Arnold 

 tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 
david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in Guildhall Club at 1PM  

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording  
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To approve the public minutes and summary of the Property Investment Board 

meeting held on 13 January 2016. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. HOUSING AND PLANNING BILL 
 Report of the Remembrancer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act. 

 For Decision 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
8. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To approve the non-public minutes of the Property Investment Board meeting held on 

13 January 2016. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 9 - 16) 

 
9. MUSEUM OF LONDON: FUNDING FOR UPDATED BUSINESS CASE FOR 

MUSEUM'S OCCUPATION OF SMITHFIELD GENERAL MARKET SITE. 
 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 17 - 24) 

 
10. CITY SURVEYOR'S DEPARTMENTAL BUSINESS PLAN QUARTER 3 PROGRESS 

UPDATE 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 25 - 44) 

 



 

3 
 

11. CITY SURVEYOR'S DEPARTMENTAL RISK UPDATE 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 45 - 78) 

 
12. CITY'S RENTAL FORECASTS MONITORING REPORT 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 79 - 86) 

 
13. VACANT ACCOMMODATION UPDATE AS AT 1 DECEMBER 2015 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 87 - 124) 

 
14. METRICS USED IN MAKING MAJOR PROPERTY DECISIONS 
 Joint report of the City Surveyor and the Chamberlain. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 125 - 134) 

 
BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES 

 
15. LETTING REPORT - FINSBURY HOUSE, EC2 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 135 - 144) 

 
CITY'S ESTATE 

 
16. LAND SWAP AND GRANT OF LONG LEASE TO FACILITATE DEVELOPMENT -

LEADENHALL TRIANGLE, EC3 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 145 - 156) 

 
17. GATEWAY 3/4 OPTIONS APPRAISAL - REFURBISHMENT OF 3RD FLOOR AND 

RECEPTION AREA, WHITEFRIARS STREET, EC4 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 157 - 174) 

 
18. LETTING REPORT - GRANT OF A NEW LEASE, NEW BOND STREET W1 (TO 

FOLLOW) 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 

CITY FUND  
 
19. LETTING REPORT - RENT REVIEW, BAYNARD HOUSE EC4 (TO FOLLOW) 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 

 



 

 

20. ISSUE REPORT - TABERNACLE STREET, EC2 (TO FOLLOW) 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Decision 

 
21. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

BOARD 
 
22. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC 
ARE EXCLUDED 

 
Part 3 - Confidential Agenda 

 
23. RESTRUCTURING OF THE FACILITIES MANAGEMENT TEAMS 
 Report of the City Surveyor. 
 For Information 



PROPERTY INVESTMENT BOARD 
 

Wednesday, 13 January 2016  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Property Investment Board held at the Guildhall 
EC2 at 1.45 pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Alastair Moss (Chairman) 
Tom Sleigh (Deputy Chairman) 
Keith Bottomley (Co-Opted Member) 
Deputy Michael Cassidy 
Deputy Roger Chadwick 
 

Deputy John Chapman 
George Gillon 
Deputy Brian Harris 
Michael Hudson 
 

 
Officers: 
David Arnold - Town Clerk's Department 

Craig Spencer - Town Clerk's Department 

Alan Bennetts - Comptroller & City Solicitor's Department 

Peter Bennett - City Surveyor 

Nicholas Gill - City Surveyor's Department 

Peter Young - City Surveyor's Department 

Tom Leathart - City Surveyor's Department 

Trevor Nelson - City Surveyor's Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
Apologies for absence were received from Mark Boleat, Ann Holmes and Dhruv 
Patel. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
The Chairman declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 10 as a consultant to 
Gardiner and Theobald LLP, mentioned in the report, and a pecuniary interest 
in item 16 as a Freeman of the Goldsmiths Company. 
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the public minutes and summary of the Board meeting held 
on 9 December 2015 be approved. 
 

4. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were none. 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was none. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



6. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 

Item No. Paragraph No. 
7-12, 14-21 3 

13 
23 

3 & 5 
1 & 2 

  
7. NON PUBLIC MINUTES  

RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the Board meeting held on 9 
December 2015 be approved. 
 

8. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY OR 
URGENCY PROCEDURES  
The Board received a report of the Town Clerk that provided details of two 
decisions taken under delegated authority and urgency, in consultation with the 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Board, since its last meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the action taken under delegated authority and urgency be 
noted.  
 

9. QUARTERLY DELEGATED AUTHORITIES UPDATE - 1ST OCTOBER 2015 
TO 31 DECEMBER 2015  
The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that provided details of the 
property transactions approved under my delegated authority between 1 
October 2015 to 31 December 2015. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

10. OUTSTANDING LEASE RENEWALS AND RENT REVIEWS  
The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that provided details of all 
outstanding lease renewals and rent reviews as at 31 December 2015. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

11. EXPENDITURE TO ALLOW PRELIMINARY INVESTIGATIONS INTO 
SMITHFIELD GENERAL MARKET AND ANNEXE  
The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that provided details of some 
expenditure to allow preliminary investigations into Smithfield General Market 
and Annexe. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



12. FIRST REGISTRATION OF THE CITY'S FREEHOLD TITLES - PROGRESS 
SINCE JANUARY 2015  
The Board received a report of the City Surveyor that detailed the progress of 
the City of London Corporation’s title registration project, which was integral to 
the City Corporation fulfilling its property asset management responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

13. GLA ROADS - LAND DISPUTE WITH TRANSPORT FOR LONDON  
The Board received a report of the Comptroller and City Solicitor that provided 
Members with the details of the dispute and High Court appeal decision 
regarding the transfer of highway land between the City of London Corporation 
and Transport for London. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

14. BRIDGE HOUSE ESTATES STRATEGIC UPDATE  
The Board received a report and presentation from the City Surveyor that 
provided an annual update of the strategy for the Bridge House Estate. 
 
RESOLVED – That the annual update of the strategy for the Bridge House 
Estate be noted. 
 

15. CITY FUND STRATEGIC UPDATE  
The Board received a report and presentation from the City Surveyor that 
provided an annual update of the property investment strategy for the City 
Fund. 
 
RESOLVED – That the annual update of the property investment strategy for 
the City Fund. 
 

16. LAND DISPOSAL - WOOD STREET, EC2  
The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to the 
sale of the freehold interest in City Fund land. 
 

17. LETTING REPORT - FLEET STREET, EC4  
The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to the 
grant of a new lease. 
 

18. ISSUE REPORT - NEW BOND STREET, W1  
The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor regarding a redevelopment 
project. 
 

19. LETTING REPORT - NEW BOND STREET, W1  
The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to an 
interim rent settlement. 
 

20. LETTING REPORT - NEW BROAD STREET, EC2  
The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to the 
grant of a new lease. 

Page 3



21. LETTING REPORT - ALFRED PLACE, WC1  
The Board considered a report of the City Surveyor that sought approval to the 
grant of a licence for works. 
 

22. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE BOARD  
There was one question. 
 

23. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST 
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
The Board considered four items of urgent business. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.15 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: David Arnold 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 
david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 4



 

 

Committee: Date: 

Corporate Asset Sub (Finance) 

Property Investment Board 

29 January 2016 

10 February 2016 

Subject: 

Housing and Planning Bill 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Remembrancer 

For Information 

 

Summary 

This Report advises Members of provisions included in the Housing and Planning 
Bill currently before Parliament, which are intended principally to encourage land 
held in the public sector to be made available for housing development. They 
include a duty to consult other public authorities when developing proposals to 
dispose of land, a duty to prepare annual reports about surplus land-holdings, a 
broader power for the Secretary of State to direct the disposal of land, and a duty 
to prepare annual assessments on the sustainability and efficiency of the property 
estate. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that Members receive this Report. 

 

Main Report 

1. The Housing and Planning Bill contains important measures intended to set 
the direction of the Government’s housing policy and enable it to meet its 
house-building targets. This Report deals with new clauses recently added to 
the Bill, which form the latest stage of the Government’s efforts to encourage 
land held in the public sector to be made available for housing development. 
A more general account of the Bill may be found in the background papers 
listed below. 

Provisions about public sector land 

2. The first of the new measures will require public authorities to engage “on an 
ongoing basis” with other public authorities when developing proposals for the 
disposal of land. The underlying intention is that opportunities to use the land 
for house-building can be identified or maximised. The Government will lay 
down guidance about how the duty of engagement is to be fulfilled, and will 
also be able to exempt certain sorts of land. 

3. The second measure will require public authorities to prepare and publish 
annual reports of their surplus land-holdings. They are buildings or other land 
which the authority has identified as being surplus to its requirements but in 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

which it continues to own an interest. The report will only cover land identified 
as surplus within the previous two years (or six months in the case of land 
already used for housing), although the Government will be able to disapply 
this time limit in relation to certain sorts of land. The report will have to include 
an explanation of why the authority has not disposed of its surplus holdings. 
Further details about the contents of the report will be set out in regulations, 
which may also exclude certain sorts of land from the reporting requirement. 

4. The third measure amends the existing power of the Secretary of State to 
direct public authorities to take steps to dispose of land held by them. 
Presently the power may only be used where the land is considered by the 
Secretary of State to be unused or insufficiently used for the purposes of the 
authority. The Bill will enable alternative criteria to be set out in regulations. It 
is understood that the Government’s intention is to allow a more active 
approach to directing the disposal of land determined to be surplus, and thus 
featuring on the reports described above. It is however possible that the 
power could be used more widely. 

5. The fourth measure will require public authorities to prepare annual reports 
(starting in 2017) containing a “buildings efficiency and sustainability 
assessment.” This is an assessment of the progress made by the authority 
towards improving the “efficiency and contribution to sustainability” of 
buildings owned by the authority. In particular, it must include an assessment 
of progress made in reducing the size of the authority’s estate, and in 
ensuring that buildings newly acquired by the authority fall within the top 
quartile of energy performance. The assessment is based on those which 
already have to be carried out by central government under climate change 
legislation. Although the clause appears to assume that public authorities will 
seek to reduce the size of their estate in each year, it imposes no obligation to 
do so. Regulations will be able to exclude certain sorts of land from the 
assessment.  

Application to the City Corporation 

6. The Bill does not specify the “public authorities” which will be subject to the 
first three measures described above. Instead, they will be set out in 
regulations. If (as expected) the measures are applied to local government, 
they should apply to the Common Council only in its capacity as a local 
authority (i.e. to land held in the City Fund). Steps will be taken during the 
passage of the Bill through Parliament to secure this limitation. It is made 
clear on the face of the Bill that the buildings efficiency and sustainability 
assessment will only cover City Fund buildings situated within the City. (In this 
context it should be noted that Standing Order 55 already requires 
committees to “consider the effective and efficient use of all operational 
property assets,” under the oversight of the Corporate Asset Sub Committee.) 

7. The public authorities with which the City Corporation will have to consult 
when developing proposals to dispose of land (as mentioned in paragraph 2 
above) will also be specified in regulations. They are likely to include 
Government departments, the Greater London Authority, or London borough 
councils. 

Page 6



 

 

8. Special consideration is required as to how the new measures will apply to 
property held for investment purposes as opposed to operational purposes. 
So far as the surplus reporting requirement (as mentioned in paragraph 3 
above) is concerned, it seems that such land should not be treated as 
“surplus,” as it is being used to satisfy the Corporation’s requirement to 
manage its capital in a proper way. Land certified by the Corporate Asset Sub 
Committee as being no longer required for operational use should therefore 
only be reported as “surplus” once the Property Investment Board has further 
decided that it should not be retained for investment purposes.  

9. Officers are assessing the implications of applying the other measures to 
investment property held in the City Fund. If it is concluded that there is a risk 
of prejudice to the City Corporation's interests, a case will be made to the 
Government that investment property should be treated differently. 

10. It should be noted more broadly that the main policy intention behind the new 
measures is to encourage the release of land for house-building. This is not 
likely to be a feasible objective in respect of City Fund land, most of which is 
situated within the City and would not be suitable for housing. The measures 
will not override planning policies protecting the loss of office space to 
housing development in the City. 

Conclusion 

11. It is likely that the measures described above will result in new obligations for 
the City Corporation with respect to land held in the City Fund. A number of 
details are, however, as yet unclear. The remaining passage of the Bill 
through Parliament will be closely monitored in liaison with the City Surveyor 
(who has assisted in the preparation of this Report), and will give rise to 
opportunities to engage with parliamentarians and officials. Such engagement 
will be informed by any views expressed by Members in response to this 
Report. Particular consideration will be given to the political and practical 
merits of arguing for investment property to be treated differently under the 
new requirements. Further developments will be reported as appropriate to 
Members. 

Background papers 

 Report of the Remembrancer to the Community & Children’s Services 
Committee, 11th December 2015, Item 7. 

 Report of the Remembrancer to the Planning & Transportation Committee, 
15th December, Item 10. 

 Report of the Remembrancer to the Policy and Resources Committee, 21st 
January 2016, Item 14. 

Sam Cook 
Assistant Parliamentary Affairs Counsel 

020 7332 3045 
sam.cook@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 7

mailto:sam.cook@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Document is Restricted

Page 9

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 125

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 145

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 157

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Housing and Planning Bill
	8 Non Public Minutes
	9 Museum of London: Funding for Updated Business Case for Museum's Occupation of Smithfield General Market Site.
	10 City Surveyor's Departmental Business Plan Quarter 3 Progress Update
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	11 City Surveyor's Departmental Risk Update
	Appendix A

	12 City's Rental Forecasts Monitoring Report
	13 Vacant Accommodation Update as at 1 December 2015
	Appendix A Property on hold as at 1 December 2015
	Appendix B Classifications of vacant space
	Appendix C Citys Estate in detail
	Appendix D Bridge House Estate in detail
	Appendix E City Fund in detail
	Appendix F Strategic Properties in detail
	Appendix G Leadenhall Market in detail
	Appendix H
	Appendix I  The City Agents Office Commentary for Quarter 2 2015 (AQ2_2015_Final)

	14 Metrics Used in Making Major Property Decisions
	15 Letting Report - Finsbury House, EC2
	16 Land Swap and Grant of Long lease to facilitate development -Leadenhall Triangle, EC3
	17 Gateway 3/4 Options Appraisal - Refurbishment of 3rd Floor and Reception Area, Whitefriars Street, EC4

